S. Daga & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
Pokarna Engineered Stone Limited

Report on the Audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Pokarna Engineered Stone Limited (‘the
Company’), which comprise of the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the statement of Profit and
Loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of
cash flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereafter referred to as “the finan cial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by The Companies Act, 2013 (“The Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian accounting
standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, (Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, profit, total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI") together with the ethical requirement that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules made
there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report:

# 403, Paigah Plaza, Basheerbagh, Hyderabad - 500 063.
Tel No.: Off : 23231740, 23233827, E-mail : dagasl@rediffmail.com



the

financial reporting

We identified IT systems and
controls over financial reporting
as a key audit matter for the
Company because its financial
accounting and reporting systems
are fundamentally reliant on IT

S No. Key Audit Matter Auditors Response
1 Inventory of raw material, Work
in Progress and Finished Goods
(Valuation) -
Finished goods inventory are | With respect to the net realisable value:
valued at lower of cost and net | ¢ Obtained an understanding  of
realizable value (estimated selling | determination of the net realizable values of
price less estimated cost to sell). | Quartz surfaces and assessed and tested the
Considering the nature of finished reasonableness of the significant judgements
goods consisting of Quartz applied by the management.
surfaces which is dependent upon | ° Evaluated the design of internal controls
various market conditions and | relating to the valuation of finished goods/work
evaluating possible impact of | in progress and finished goods and also tested
quality, class, size and ageing, | the operating effectiveness of the aforesaid
determination of the net realizable | controls.
value for goods involves | « To assess the reasonableness of the net
significant management | realisable value considering the market
judgement and therefore has been condition and evaluating possible impact of
considered as a key audit matter. | quality, class, size and ageing that was estimated
and considered by the management,
o Compared the actual costs incurred to sell
based on the latest sale transactions to assess
the reasonableness of the cost to sell that was
estimated and considered by the management.
+ Compared the cost of the finished goods with
the estimated net realisable value and checked if |
the finished goods were recorded at net
realisable value where the cost was higher than
the net realisable value.
« Tested the appropriateness of the disclosure in
the financial statements in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework.
2 IT systems and controls over | Our procedures included and were not limited to

the following:

Assessed the complexity of the IT environment
by engaging IT specialists and through
discussion with the head of IT and internal audit
and identified IT applications that are relevant to
our audit.

Assessed the design and evaluation of the

operating effectiveness of IT general controls over




systems and IT controls to process
significant transaction volumes,
specifically ~with  respect to
revenue and raw  material
consumption. Also, due to such
large transaction volumes and the
increasing challenge to protect the
integrity of the Company’s
systems and data, cyber security
has become more significant.

Automated accounting
procedures and IT environment
controls, which include IT
governance, IT general controls
over program development and
changes, access to program and
data and IT operations, IT
application controls and
interfaces between IT applications
are required to be designed and to
operate effectively to ensure
accurate financial reporting.

program development and ch—anges,gcegg to |
program and data and IT operations by engaging
IT specialists.

Performed inquiry procedures in respect of the
overall security architecture and any key threats
addressed by the Company in the current year.
Assessed the design and evaluation of the
operating effectiveness of IT application controls
in the key processes impacting financial
reporting of the Company by engaging IT
specialists.

3 Evaluation of Provision for
Warranties
The Company gives warranties on
products and services,

undertaking to repair / replace
during the warranty period.
Provision made represents the
amount of the expected cost of
meeting such obligation on
account of repair / replacement.

Refer Note No.17 of the financial
statements.

i S

Our audit approach was a combination of test of
internal controls and substantive procedures.
We have further reviewed the management’s
assumptions with respect to estimating the
provision for warranties and noted based on the
past experience of the levels of repairs and
returns of certain products and services.

Information other than financial statements and Auditor’s report thereon

The company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other
f the information included in the Board’s Report
ment Discussion and Analysis Report and Business
1 statements and our auditor’s report thercon.
ation and we do not express any

information. The other information comprises o
including Annexures to Boards Report, Manage
Responsibility Report but does not include the financia
Our opinion on financial statements does not cover the other inform

form of assurance or conclusion thereon.




In connection with our audit of the financial statement, our responsibility is to read the other
information and in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statement or other information obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management, Those Charged with Governance and Board of Directors for the
financial statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated 1n seclon
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including total comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles ge nerally accepted
in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management and
Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:




e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatemnent of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the approprialeness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

eEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determinc
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, to the extent
applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statcment of Profit and T.oss including other comprehensive income, the
statement of change in equity, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and fo the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to
its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with respect to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“«Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us!

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note.34 to the financial statement;

(ii) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or Accounting Standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long term contracts. The Company neither entered into any
derivative contract during the year nor have any outstanding derivative contract at the end of the year;

(iii) The provisions relating to transferring amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund is not
applicable to the Company during the year.




(iv)(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on hehall of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iv)(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person
or entity, including foreign entity (‘Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, thatl (hie Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iv)(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

(v) The interim dividend paid by the Company during the year and until the date of this report is in
compliance with section 123 of the Act.

(vi) Based on our examination, which includes test checks, the Company has used accounting software
for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across
any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

For S. Daga & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
(ICAI FRN: 0000669S)

(¥ C}_ﬂ; 2

(Shantilal Daga)
Partner
Membership No. 011617

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16.05.2024

UDIN No. : 24011617BKCRPG9474



“Annexure — A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

ii.

In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment, right-of-use assets and
Intangible Assets: —

(a)(i) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property Plant and Equipment and relevant details of
righl-of-use assets.

(ii) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant
and Equipment and right-of-use assets by which all assets are verified in a phased manner
over a period of one year. In accordance with this programme, the Property, Plant and
Equipment and right-of-use assets have been physically verified by the management during
the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our
opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c)According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by
us, we report that the title deeds comprising of immovable properties of Land and Building
which are freehold are held in the name of the company as on the Balance sheet date. In
respect of immovable properties of Land and Building that have been taken on Lease and
disclosed as Property, Plant and Equipment or right-of-use assets in the financial
statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the Company, where the company is
the Lessee in the agreement.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(¢) There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

(a) The inventory, except goods-in-transit, has been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is
reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the
book records were not material.

(b) The Company is having working capital limits in excess of Rs.5 crores from banks On the
basis of primary security of current assets of the Company, the quarterly stock and receivables
statements filed by the company with such banks are in agreement with the books of accounts
of the Company.




iii.

v,

vi.

vii.

The Company has not made investments in, companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships,
and has not granted unsecured loans to other parties, during the vear.

(a) The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or stood
guarantee, or provided security to any other entity during the year, and hence reporting under
clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion, the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of loans,
during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) The Company has not given any loans or advances in the nature of loans and hence the
schedule of repayment of principal and interest has not been stipulated for repayment and
thereforc the receipt of interest does not apply.

(d) The Company has not given any loans or advances and therefore reporting under clause
(iii) (d) of the Order is not applicable.

(€) No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed
or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the samc
parties.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable

on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) is not applicable.

The Company has not provided guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature
of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and securities
provided, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of the
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions of section 73 to 76 of the Act, any
other relevant provisions of the Act and the relevant rules framed there under and hence
reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

The Central Government of India has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Act, for the products sold and services rendered by the
Company and hence reporting under paragraph 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including

provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax, goods and service tax, duty of
customs, cess, professional tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the
appropriate authorities.




viii.

ix. (a)

xi.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect Good and Service tax, provident fund,
employees state insurance, income tax, duty of customs, cess, professional tax and other
material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2024.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to banks or landers as at the Balance Sheet date.

(b) The company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or government authority.

(c) On the basis of our review of utilization of funds pertaining to term loans on overall basis,
the term loans taken by the company has been utilized for the purpose of which they were
obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on
short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by
the Company.

() On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f)
of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b} of the Order is
not applicable.

a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government during the year and up to the date of this report.

(c) We have taken in to consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year and till date of this report, while determining the nature, timing and extent of
our audit procedures.




xii,

xiii.

Xiv.

xvii.

xviii.

Xix.

The Company is not a Nidhi company and hence paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

In our Opinion the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable. The details of such related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by applicable
Indian Accounting Standards.

a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business.

b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures.

During the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him and hence reporting under paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

a) During year the company has not conducted any Non-Banking financial or Housing Finance
activities without a valid certificate of registration (COR) from the RBI as per the RBI Act, 1934.

(b) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act,1934. Hence reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and(c) of the order
is not applicable

(c) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under
clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and
the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.




XXi.

(a)There is no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than
on-going projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companics
Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

(b) In respect of on-going projects, the Company has transferred the unspent Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) amount as at the end of financial year to a Special Account with in a
period of 30 days from the end of the financial year in compliance with the provision of sub-
section (6) of section 135 of the said Act.

The provisions relating to CFS (Consolidated Financial Statements) is not applicable to the
company and hence reporting under clause xxi of the Order is not applicable

For S. Daga & CO.,
Chartered Accountants

(ICAI FRN: 00006698)

@

(Shantilal Daga)

Partner

v (A i7lefe

Membership No. 011617

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16.05.2024

UDIN : 24011617BKCRPG9474



“Annexure - B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements of Pokarna
Engineered Stone Limited (“the Company”) as of 31t March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Intcrnal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
with reference to the financial statements based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control over financial reporting
issued by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statement. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statement was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to the financial statement included obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over financial statement:

A company's internal financial control with reference to these financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's asscts that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to the financial statement may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of com pliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to best of our information and according to explanation given to us, the Company has,
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control system with reference to these financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal financial control with reference to the
financial statement criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the ICAL

For S. Daga & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
(ICAI FRN: 0000669S)

(Shantilal Daga)

Partner
Membership No. 011617

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16.05.2024
UDIN : 24011617BKCRPG947



POKARNA ENGINEERED STONE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET as at March 31, 2024 Z In lakhs
- As at As at
- March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
! Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 63090.48 65240 15
(b) Right-of-Use Assets 3 1682.89 765.43
(c) Capital work-in-progress 6718.79 38.53
(d) Intangible assets 3 53.54 66.14
(e) Financial assets
(i} Investments 4 0.50 0.50
(i) Loans 5(A) - 19.66
(iii) Other financial assets 6(A) 799.60 401,06
() Other non-current assets 7(AY 726.75 172.90
Total non-current assets 73072.55 66704.37
1 Current assets )
(a) Inventories 8 13839.92 14954 .71
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 9 11315.15 9998.21
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 10 6764.02 1885.70
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 11 1324.05 1002.64
(1v) Loans 5(B) 47.83 40.96
(v) Other financial assets 6(B) 214.23 2975
(c) Current tax assets (net) 12 261.99 -
(d) Other current assets 7(B) 3627.95 2562.60
Total current assets 37395.14 30474.57
TOTAL ASSETS 110467.69 97178.94
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
| Equity
(a) Equity share capital ! 13 417.06 417.06
(b) Other equity 14 53337.47 43694.27
Total equity 53754.53 44111.33
Liabilities
1l Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15(A) 28477.80 32854 .84
(ia) Lease liabilities 16(A) 1014.36 115.32
(b) Provisions 17(A) 593.48 457 86
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 18 4440.26 1961.29
(d) Other non-current liabilities 19(A) 4291.25 179.82
Total non-current liabilities 38817.15 35569.23
m Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15(B) 6223.66 8362.46
(ia) Lease liabilities 16(B) 110.29 46.78
(ii) Trade payables 20
a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 293.24 219.04
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 6763.68 5317.37
(iii) Other financial liabilities 21 3.32 3.72
(b) Other current liabilities 19(B) 3417.76 229894
(c) Provisions 17(B) 1084.06 1132.39
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 22 - 117.68
Total current liabilities 17896.01 17498.38
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 110467.69 97178 .94
Notes forming part of the financial statements 1-46
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In terms of our report attached
For S.Daga & Co.

Chartered Accountants
(F.N0.0006698S)

~[rey)-1r

Shantilal Daga
Partner

Membership No. 11617
Place : Hyderabad
Date : 16th May, 2024

UPIN L QLU 6IT DK CRPGI®4T

Director
{D.No: 00576447)




POKARNA ENGINEERED STONE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS for the Year ended March 31, 2024 Z In lakhs
Year ended Year ended
Note March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
I Revenue from operalions T 23 64972.84 66766.55
Il Other income 24 1057.56 1070.23
n Total income 6603040 67836 78
v Expenses
a) Cost of raw material consumed 25 23649.61 2865543
b) Changes in stock of finished goods, work-in-progress 26 298.95 1092 43
¢) Employee benefits expense 27 5477.96 433507
d) Depreciation and amortization expense 28 3586.01 3344 16
e) Finance costs 29 3501.73 438567
f) Other expenses 30 14356.36 16673.04
Total expenses 50869.62 58485 80
A Profit before tax (lll-IV) 156160.78 9350.98
vi Tax expense:
a) Current tax 31 4672.71 2224 49
b) Deferred tax 403.87 337.89
Total tax expense 5076.58 2562 .38
Vil Profit for the year (V-VI) 10084.20 6788 .60
Vil Other comprehensive income
(i) ltems that will not be reclaaaified 1o profit or loss (31.99) (11.07)
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 8.05 278
Total other comprehensive income {23.94) {8.29)
IX Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIli) 10060.26 6780.31
X Earnings per share - Basic and Diluted (in %) 32 241.79 162.77
Nominal Value of share (in %) 10.00 10.00
Notes forming part of the financial statements 1-46

in terms of our report attached
For S.Daga & Co.

Chartered Accountants
(F.No.000669S}

Shantilal Daga
Partner
Membership No. 11617
Place : Hyderabad
Date : 16th May, 2024

VO Qo141 Bl RPGA4TY

Director
(D.No: 00576447)

Board of Directors




STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY for the Year ended 31st March, 2024

A) EQUITY SHARES

Z In lakhs

Particulars

Balance as at
1st April 2023

Equity shares of  10/- each issued,Subcribed and fully paid-up

417.06

Changes in Equity Share Capital
due to prior period errors

Restated Changes in equity
balance as at share capital
1st April 2023 during the year

Balance as at
31st March 2024

417.06 . 417.06

Particulars

Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each issued,Subcribed and fully paid-up

Balance as at 1st

April 2022

417 06

Changes in Equity Share Capital

due to prior period errors

Restated Changes in equity Balance as at
balance as at  share capital during 31st March 2023
1st April 2022 the year

417 .06 - 417.06

B) OTHER EQUITY

¥ In lakhs

Items of Other

Reserves and Surplus Comprehensive

Income (OCl)

Particulars Total Other Equity
- . Remeasurements
Securities Retained of net defined
Premium Earnings L s

benefit plans
Balance as at 01.04.2023 5698.82 38001.66 (6.21) 43694.27
Changes in Accounting policy or prior period errors - - - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 5698.82 38001.66 (6.21) 43694.27
Profit for the year 10084.20 - 10084.20
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - (23.94) (23.94)
Dividend - (417.06) - (417.06)
Balance as at 31.03.2024 5698.82 47668.80 (30.15) 53337.47

Items of Other

Reserves and Surplus Comprehensive
Particulars Income (OCI) Total Other Equity

Retained Remeasurements of
Securities Premium Earnings net defined benefit
plans

Balance as at 01.04.2022 5698.82 31463.30 2.08 37164.20
Changes in Accounting policy or prior period errors = P = .
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 5698.82 31463.30 2.08 37164.20
Profit for the year 6788.60 - 6788.60
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - (8.29) (8.29)
Dividend - (250.24) - (250.24)
Balance as at 31.03.2023 5698.82 38001.66 (6.21) 43694 .27

In terms of our report attached
For S.Daga & Co.

Chartered Accountants
(F.No.000669S)

S 0f-

Shantilal Daga
Partner

Membership No. 11617
Place : Hyderabad
Date : 161h May, 2024

U AU 613 BYRPHA4T 4

Rahul Jain
Director
(D.No: 00576447)

f Board of Directors



POKARNA ENGINEERED STONE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW for the year ended March 31, 2024

(A) Cash flows from operating activities

ZIn lakhs

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Profit before taxes 15160.78 9350.98
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortization expense 3585.01 3344 16
Loss/ (Profit) on Sale of property, plant and equipment (Net) 12.40 1024
Allowance for credit losses 13.85 (24 26)
Credit Balances written back . -
Debit Balances written back - 11.56
Gain on medification of lease (1.21)
Provision for warranties - -
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain) / loss (Net) (711.61) 43.35
Net gain/ (loss) on fair valuation of Financial Assets measured at FVTPL 37.19 87.22
Finance costs 3460.50 4279 .44
Interest income (856.51) (55.55)
Operating profit before working capital changes 21472.61 1704593
Changes in working capital and other provisions:
(Increase)\Decrease in Trade Receivables (1178.56) 3625.86
(Increase)\Decrease in Inventories 1114.79 (353.53)
(Increase)\Decrease in Financial Assets (968.95) (379.63)
(Increasef\Decrease in Non - Financial Assets (1051.19) 947.52
Increaee\(Decrease) in Provisions 87.29 094,77
Increase\(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables 2468.29 (5281.59)
Cash generated from operations 21944.28 15699.33
Income taxes paid, net (2969.23) (2688.72)
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 18975.05 13010.61
(B) Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (4399.35) (3328.20)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 114.01 84.34
Interest income 95.34 61.27
Net cash from /(used in) investing activities (4190.00) (3182.59)
(C) Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from Non-current borrowings (including current maturities) 1502.39 2037.63
Repayment of Non-current borrowings (including current maturities) (5557.90) (5836.68)
(Repayment) / Proceeds from Current borrowings (Net) (2639.38) (2685.23)
Principal payments of Lease Liabilities (63.22) (42.76)
Interest expense (including lease liabilities) (3262.93) (3351.49)
Dividend paid (417.06) (250.24)
Net cash from/ (used in) financing activities (10438.10) (10128.77)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4346.95 (300,75)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1885.70 1513.47
Effect of exchange gain on cash and cash equivalents 531.37 672,98
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note.10.1) 6764.02 1885.70
Change in Liability arising from Financing Activities 15;0’;;’"' Cashflow | oreldn Exchange 315;0':':"’"
Borrowing- Mon-current (including current maturities) 36179.83 (4055.51) 197.98 32322.30
Borrowing - Current 5037.47 (2639.38) (18.93) 2379.16
Lease liability ( including current maturities) 162.10 (63.22) 1025.77 1124.65
41379.40 (6758.11) 1204.81 35826.11
Change in Liability arising from Financing Activities 1st April 2022  Cashflow :gjg:ei):/ﬁ:g?: 3152t0|\2/I:rch
Borrowing- Non-current (including current maturities) 38398.31 (3799.05) 1680.57 36179.83
Borrowing - Current 7650,80 (2685,23) 71,90 5037.47
Lease liability ( including current maturities) 143.35 (42,76) 61.51 162.10
46192.46 (6527.04) 1713.98 41379.40

Note: Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method, as s
In terms of our report attached

For S.Daga & Co.

Chartered Accountants
(F.No.000669S)

(e Sctd—

Shantilal Daga
Partner
Membership No. 11617
Place : Hyderabad
Date ; 16th May, 2024

UDEN & Lolig (5 B CRPGI%4T Yy

Rahul Jain
Director
(D.No: 00576447)

in Ind AS 7 -'Statement of Cash Flows'



Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 March, 2024

1

Corporate information

The standalone financial statements comprise financial slalemenls of Pokarna Engineered Stone Limiled (the "Company” ) for lhe year ended 31sl March, 2024 The
Company is a public company domiciled in India and incorporaled under the provisions of the Companies Acl applicable in India The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Pokarna Limiled. The regislered office of the Company is at 105, Surya Towers, SP Road, Secunderabad - 500003, Telangana, India and its principal manufacturing
facilities are localed al APSEZ, Atchutapuram & Rambili Mandal, Vishakhapalnam, Andhra Pradesh and at Mekaguda Gram Panchayat, Dooskal Village, Ranga Reddy
Dislrict as a EOU. The Company is primarily engaged in lhe business of manufacluring, processing and selling high quality engineered quariz surfaces

Basis of preparation, measurement and material accounting policies
The malerial accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below
Such accounling policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presenled in these financial statements, unless otherwise indicated

21

2.2

23

24

Basis of preparation and measurement

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statemenls are prepared in accordance with and in compliance, in all material aspects wilh Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
Seclion 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (lhe Act) read along with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, as amended and other relevant provisions
of the Acl. The presentation of the Financial Stalements is based on Ind AS Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial stalements have been prepared on an accrual and going concern basis and in accordance with the historical cost convention, unless otherwise
staled. All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current generally based on the criteria of realisation/settlement within a twelve monlh period
from the balance sheet date

Key accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions :
The preparation of the financial stalements requires management 1o exercise judgment and to make eslimales and assumplions. These estimates and
associaled assumptions are based on historical experiences and various olher factors that are believed to be reasonable under lhe circumstances. Actual
results may differ from these estimales. The estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revision lo accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if ihe revision affect only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future period. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgmenls in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant affect on the amounts recognised in lhe financial statements are included in the following notes:

- Measurement of defined benefit obligations - Note 27

- Measurement and likelihood of occurrence of provisions and contingencies - Note 17 and 34

- Recognition of deferred tax assets - Note 18

- Key assumptions used in discounted cash flow projections - Note 37

- Impairment of assets - Nole 3

- Allowances for credit losses for finance receivables - Note 9

- Measurement of Right-of-use Asset and Lease liabililies - Note 3B and 40

Recent Accounting Developments

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules
as issued from time to time. During the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the exisling standards
applicable to the Company.

Material accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment

An item of properly, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and its cost can be measured reliably. This recognition principle is applied to the costs incurred initially to acquire an item of properly, plant and
equipment and also to costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. All other repair and mainlenance costs, including regular servicing,
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. When a replacement occurs, the camying value of the replaced part is de-recognized, Where an
ilem of property, plant and equipment comprises major components having different useful lives, these components are accounted for as separate items,
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, Cost includes all direct costs and expenditures incurred to
bring the asset to its working condition and localion for its intended use. Trial run expenses (net of revenue) are capitalized. Borrowing costs incurred during the
period of construction is capilalized as part of cost of the qualifying assets,

The gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying value of the asset, and is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss,

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of fixed assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the year end

Project development and pre-operative expenses attributable to project are allocated to the cost of the fixed assets, Others are written off over the period of
five years from the year of commercial operations begins.

Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Depreciation or amortization is provided so as o write off, on a siraight line basis, the cost of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets,
including those held under finance leases to their residual value, These charges are commenced from the dates the assets are available for their intended use
and are spread over their estimated useful economic lives or, in the case of leased assets, over the lease period, if shorter. The estimated useful lives of assets
and residual values are reviewed regularly and, when necessary, revised. No further charge is provided in respect of assets that are fully written down but are
slill in use.

Depreciation on assets under construclion commences only when the assets are ready for their intended use

The eslimated useful lives for the current and comparalive periods are determined with reference to Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation
methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate.

Freehold land is stated at cost and is not depreciated.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization or impairment. Intangible assets are amorlized on their estimated useful life of assets
Expenditure incurred in research phase is expensed as incurred.




Right-of-use Assets

The Company's lease assel classes primarily consist of leases for Land and Buildings, Retail Qutlels, Vehicles and Planl & Machinery The Company assesses
whether a contracl is or conlains a lease, at inceplion of a contract A conlracl is, or contains, a lease if the conlracl conveys the righl lo conlrol the use of an
idenlified assel for a period of time in exchange for consideralion. To assess whether a contract conveys the righl to conlrol the use of an idenlified asset, the
Company assesses whelher:

(i) lhe conlract involves Lhe use of an identified asset

(ii) the Company has the right to substantially all of he economic benefils from use of the assel lhrough lhe period of lhe lease and

(iii) the Company has Lhe right to direct the use of the asset

{i)As a Lessee

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset ('ROU") and a corresponding lease liabilily for all lease arrangements
in which it is a lessee, excepl for leases with a term of twelve months or less {shorl term leases) and leases of low value assets. For lhese short term and
leases of low value assels, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight line basis over the term of lhe lease

The righl-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises lhe initial amounl of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior
lo the commencement date of the lease plus any inilial direct cosls less any lease incentives, They are subsequently measured at cost less accumnulated
deprecialion and impairment losses, if any. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease or, if not readily determinabie, using the incremenlal borrowing rates. The lease liability is subsequenlly remeasured by increasing the carrying amount
to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amounl to reflect the lease payments made

A lease liability is remeasured upon the occurrence of certain events such as a change in the lease term or a change in an index or rale used to determine
lease payments, The remeasurement normally also adjusts the leased assets. Lease llabllity and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance
Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows

(ii)As a Lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. When the Company is an
intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by
reference to the ROU asset arising from the head lease. For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease

Provision for decommissioning and site restoration costs

Under Ind AS, cost of an item of property, plant and equipment or intangible assets includes the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the
item and restoring the site on which it is located, the obligation for which an enlity incurs either when the item is acquired or as a consequence of having used
the item during a particular period for purposes other than to produce inventories during that period. Such cost of decommissioning, restoration or similar liability
is 1o be added to or deducted from the cost of the asset to which il relates; the adjusted depreciable amount of the asset is then depreciated prospectively over
its remaining useful life,

Impairment

(i) Financial assets (including receivables)

A financial asset not carried at fair value is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence lhat it is impaired. A financial
asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative
effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset thal can be estimated reliabty.

Objeclive evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Company on terms
that the Company would not consider otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruplcy, or the disappearance of an active market for a
security

“In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credil loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss for trade
receivables "

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as expense/ income in ihe statement of profit and loss, This amount is
reflected in a separate line in the slatement of profit and loss as an impairment gain or loss

{(ii) Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed al each reporting dale to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated each year at the same time,

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate thal reflects current markel assessments of the lime value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assels (lhe "cash-
generating unit, or CGU")

The Company’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows, If there is an indication that a corporate asset may be impaired, then the recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in
the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit
(group of units) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of assets, impairment losses recognized in prior periods is assessed at each reporling date for any indications that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimales used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
deprecialion or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.




Financial instruments

Financial assets

All financial assets are initially recognized al fair value excepl lrade receivables that do nol contain a significant financing componenl are measured al
transaclion price. Transaction costs thal are directly aitributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets, which are not al fair value through profit or loss,
are adjusted lo the fair value on inilial recognition Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognised using lrade dale accounting

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from lhe asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive lhe
conlractual cash flows on the financial asset in a lransaction in which substantially all lhe risks and rewards of ownership of Lhe financial assel are transferred
Any inlerest in lransferred financial assels thal is crealed or relained by lhe Company is recognized as a separate asset or liabilily Financial assels and
liabililies are offsel and the nel amount presented in lhe balance sheel when, and only when, lhe Company has a legal righl to offset the amounts and intends
eilher to sellle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously

They are presenied as current assets, excepl for those maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date which are presented as non-current assets
Financial assels are measured initially at fair value plus transaclion costs and subsequently carried al amorlized cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment loss

The Company's financial assets include securily deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and deposits with banks. Cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash balances and call deposits with original maturities of three months or less

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of directly attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are directly recognized in the
Statement of Profil and Loss as finance cosl

Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest melhod. For trade and olher payables maturing within one year from the balance
sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due 1o the short malurily of these instrumenls

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only when, lhe Company has a legal
right lo offset the amounts and intends eilher to setile on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liabilily simultaneously

The Company financial liabilities include Loans and borrowings and trade and other payables

Cash and bank balances:

Cash and bank balances consist of:

(i) Cash and cash equivalents - which includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short term deposits which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and have maturities of less than three months from the date of such deposits
These balances with banks are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash and short-lerm deposits, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdraft but including other short-term, highly liquid investments with original malurities of three months or less that are readily convertible 1o
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value

(i) Other bank balances - which includes balances and deposits with banks thal are restricted for withdrawal and usage.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits:

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized
for the amount expected to be paid towards bonus if the Company has a present legal or consiructive obligation to pay this amounl as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably

(ii) Post -employment benefits:

Defined contribution plans:

Provident Fund

Eligible employees of the Company receive benefils from provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan. Both the eligible employees and the Company
make monthly contributions to the Government administered provident fund scheme equal to a specified percentage of the eligible employee’s salary. employer
conlribution is charged to statement of profit and loss, Amounts collected under the provident fund plan are deposited with in a Government administered
provident fund, The Company has no further obligation to the plan beyond its monthly contributions.

Employee siate Insurance Scheme

Eligible employees of the Company are covered under "Employees Slate Insurance Scheme Acl 1948", which are also defined contribution schemes
recognized and adminislered by Government of India.

The Company's contributions to these schemes are recognized as expense in statement of profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the
related service. The Company has no further obligation under these plans beyond its monihly contributions

Defined benefit plans:

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (“the Gratuity Plan”} covering the eligible employees of the Company. The Gratuity Plan provides a
lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s
salary and the tenure of the employment with the Company, Liability with regard to the Gratuity Plan is determined by actuarial valuation, performed by an
independent actuary, at each balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method

The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan as a liability in its balance sheet, Gains or losses through re-measurement of the net
defined benefit liability are recognized in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit and loss in the subsequent periods. The actual return of
the portfolio of plan assets, in excess of the yields computed by applying the discount rale used to measure the defined benefit obligation is recognized in other
comprehensive income, The effect of any plan amendments is recognized in the slatement of profit and loss

Other long-term employee benefits

The liabilities for compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months are measured as the present value of expected future
payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using projected unit credit melhod. Remeasurements
as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit
and loss in the subsequent periods,

Company uses updated assumplions to determine current service cosi and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtailment or
setllement; and recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on selllement, any reduction in surplus, even if that surplus was nol
previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of raw materials, Stores and Spares, Consumables, Packing materials are valued at Cost
on First-In-First-Out (FIFO) basis. Cost includes éxpenditures incurred in acquiring the inventories and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing
location and condition on normal operating capacity. The cost of finished goods and work in progress includes raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs
and appropri i of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, compuled on normal capacily.




Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimaled cosls of completion and lhe estimated cosls necessary
o make lhe sale

The company assess the valuation of Inventories al each reporting period and write down the value for different finished goods based on their quality classes
and ageing inventory provisions are provided to cover risks arising from slow-moving items, disconlinued products, and nel realizable value lower than cost
The process for evaluating lhese write-offs oflen requires to make subjeclive judgments and estimates, based primarily on historical experience, concerning
prices at which such invenlory will be able to be sold in the normal course of business, planned product discontinuances and introduction of competilive new
products, to lhe extent each of lhese factors impacl the Company's business

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contracl, the reimbursement is recognized as a separale asset,
but only when the reimbursement is virually certain. The expense relaling to a provision is presenled in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement. If the effecl of the time value of money is malerial, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due o the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost

Provision for Warranties :

The Company generally provides a standard warranly for covering manufacturing defects for different periods of time, depending on the lype of producl and the
customer when the product is sold or service provided to the customer The Company records a provision for the estimated cosl lo repair or replace products
under warranty, which is eslimated, based primarily on historical experience as well as management judgment. The assumptions made in relation lo the current
period are consistent wilh those in the prior year. This provision is not discounted to the present value and is determined based on the best estimate required to
settle the obligations at the Balance Sheet date

Contingent liabilities

A conlingent liabilily is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertaln future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that 1s not recognized because it I1s not probable that an outtlow ot resources
will be required to settle the obligation. A conlingent liabilily also arises in exiremely rare cases where lhere is a liability lhat cannot be recognized because it
cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in lhe financial statements

Contingent assets
Conlingent assets are not recognized but disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefils is probable

Government grants

Effeclive from 01st April 2019, the Company has adopted and opted Ind AS 20 policy for ‘Accounting for Government Granis and Disclosure of Government
Assistance’ from ‘Deferred Income recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the assets’ to 'Option of deducling
the same from carrying value'.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets comprising assets and liabilities, that are expected to be recovered primarily through sale ralher than through continuing use, are classified
as held for sale. Immediately before classification as held for sale, the assels are remeasured in accordance with the Company's accounting policies
Thereafter generally lhe assets are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell. Any impairment loss on initial classification as
held for sale and subsequent gains or losses on re-measurement are recognized in the statement of profit and toss. Gains are not recognized in excess of any
cumulative impairment loss

Where a disposal group represents a separale major line of business or geographical area of operations, or is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, then it is ireated as a discontinued operation. The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation together with the gain or loss recognized on its disposal are disclosed as a single amount in the statement of profit and loss, with all prior periods
being presented on this basis

Income taxes
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in the statement of profit and loss except relating to items
recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income,

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for the future lax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities
and their respeclive lax bases, and unutilised business loss and deprecialion carry-forwards and tax credits, Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it
is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and
unused tax credits could be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the exlent ihal it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the tax rates that are expected to apply in lhe period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on the lax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offsel when there is a legally enforceable righl to set off current tax assets against current tax liabililies and
when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authorily and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis,
The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the probability that future taxable income will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences and tax loss carryforwards can be utilised.

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognized as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal
income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to
the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period

Revenue

Revenue is recognized at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) when the performance obligations under contract are fulfilled and there
are no unfulfilled obligations and amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable 1hat future economic benefits will flow to the Company.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized:

* (HYDERABAD ) *
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Goods Sold: Revenue from sale of goods are recognized when controls of the product are transferred in accordance with the terms of sale, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the cuslomers’ acceptance of the products and is net of trade discounls, sales relurns, where applicable accordingly
export and domeslic revenue is recognized when the performance obligations in our contracls are fulfilled

Rendering of services: Revenue recognilion is based on the lerms and conditions as per the contracts entered into / understanding with the customers and
the service is performed and there are no unfulfilled obligalions All revenues from services, as rendered, are recognised when persuasive evidence of an
arrangemenl exisls, the sale price is fixed or determinable and collectability is reasonably assured and are reporled net of sales incentives, discounts based on
the terms of the contract and applicable indirecl laxes

When lwo or more revenue generating activities or deliverables are provided under a single arrangement, each deliverable thal is considered a separale unit of
account is accounled for separately. The allocation of lhe consideration from revenue arrangement 1o its separate unils of account is based on the relative fair
value of each unit

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference (o the principal outstanding and Lhe effective inleresl rate applicable

Dividend Income is recognized when lhe company's right to receive lhe paymenl has been established

Export Benefits: Export benefits are accounted for in the year of exporls based on eligibilily and when Lhere is no uncertainty in receiving lhe same

Expenditure
Expenditure is accounted on accrual basis.

Foreign currency
ltems included in the financial stalements of the Company are recorded using the currency of the primary economic environment (INR) in which the Company
operates (the ‘functional currency’)

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of ihe lransactions

Monelary assels and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet dale are translated at the closing exchange rates on that dale
Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions during the year and on restatement of monetary assets and liabililies are recognized in the
Statement of profit and loss of the year.

Non-monetary assets and liabililies carried at fair value that are denominaled in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was delermined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of hisiorical cost in foreign currency are not translated.

The transactions like receipl or payment of advance consideration in a foreign cumrency are {ranslated al the rates on the date of transaction . The date of
{ransaction for the purpose of determing exchange rate is the date of initial recognition of the non-monelary prepayment asset or deferred income liability. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, a date of transaction is established for each payment or receipt

Finance income and finance cost
Finance income comprises inferest income on funds invested and dividend income. Interest income is recognized as it accrues in the statement of profit and
loss, using the effective interest method.

Finance cosls comprise interest expense on borrowings and lease liabilities, unwinding of the discount on provisions, impairment losses recognized on financial
assets, interest expense and penalties related lo income tax

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period atiributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
equily shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares

Segment reporting

Each of the reportable segments derives its revenues from the main products and hence these have been identified as reportable segments by the Group's
chief operating decision maker ("CODM"). Segment revenue, result, assets and liabilities include ihe respective amounts identifiable to each of the segments
and amount allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated expenditure consists of common expenditure incurred for all the segments and expenses incurred at
corporate level. The assets and liabililies that cannot be allocated between the segments are shown as unallocated corporate assets and unallocated corporate
liabililies respectively

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency borrowings 1o the exlent thal they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the barrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset
which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred

Invesiment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation

Dividend declared

The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution is authorized and the distribution is no longer at the
discretion of the Company. As per the corporate faws in India, a distribulion is authorized when il is approved by the shareholder A corresponding amount is
recognized directly in equity.

Exceptional ltems
Exceptional items are disclosed separately in the financial statements where it is necessary to do so to provide further understanding of the financial
performance of the Company. These are material items of income or expense thatl have to be shown separately due to their nalure or incidence
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3 3) Capilal work-in-progress 36718 79 lakhs (previous year 38 53 lakhs)

Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule as at 31st March 2024 ZIn lakhs

Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total )
Less than 12 y(% T 23 years More than

1 year 3 years o

Projects in progress 6718.79 - - . 6718.79

Projecls lemporarily suspended

Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule as at 31st March 2023
‘Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Tolal
Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
1 year 3 years

Projects in progress 3853 : s 38 53

Projects tr:rr[Po:asilv auspended - - -
Capital work in progress, whose compietion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared lo its original plan is Rs.Nil (previous year Rs Nil)

B. ROU Leased Assets* ¥ In lakhs

Particulars Leasehold Land Building Total

1. Deemed cost (Gross carrying amount)

Ralanne As al 1st April 2022 766.59 275.79 1012.38
Additions - 69.51 69 51
Nisposals/ transfer - (90.49) (90.49)
Balance as at 31st March 2023 766.59 25481 1021.40
Balance as at 1st April 2023 766.59 254.81 1021.40
Additions 949.91 75.86 1025.77
Disposals/ transfer - - -
Balance as at 31st March 2024 1716.50 330.67 204717
2, Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as al 1st April 2022 107.66 14970 257.36
Depreciation/ amortisation for the year 35.95 46.36 8231
Disposals/ {ransfers - (83.70) (83.70)
Balance as at 31st March 2023 143.61 112.36 25597
Balance as at 1st April 2023 143.61 112.36 255.97
Depreciation/ amortisation for the year 50.74 57.57 108.31
Disposals/ transfers - - -
Balance as at 31st March 2024 194.35 169.93 364.28
3. Carrying amount (net)

At 31st March 2023 62298 142.45 765.43
At 31st March 2024 1522.15 160.74 1682.89

*refer Nole 40




Notes forming part of the financial statements
4 Investments

Trade - unquoled

Non-current - at cost

In subsidiary companies -

Equity shares of Pokarna Foundation

5000 (previous year 5000) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each
Total

5 Loans
A. Non-current loans
Loan receivables considered good -unsecured
Other loans
Total

B. Current loans
Loan receivables considered good -unsecured
Other loans
Total

6 Other financial assets
A. Non-current financial assets
Unsecured, considered good
Deposils with maturily for more than 12 months

Margin Money given against a Bank Guarantee/Letter of Credit

Interest acerued on fixed depoaita
Others
Security Deposits
Total

B. Current financial assets
Unsecured, considered good
Interest accrued on fixed deposits
Others
Total

7 Other assets
A. Non-current assets
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances
Defer lease rentals
Other non-current assets
Total

B. Current assets
Unsecured, considered good
Indirect tax receivable
Advance to suppliers
Other current assets
Prepaid expenses
Total

8 Inventories
Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Consumables, stores & spares
Packing material
Total

Details of materials in transit included in inventories above

Raw materials
Consumables, stores & spares
Packing material

9 Trade receivables
Considered good -secured
Considered good -unsecured
Which have significant increase in credit risk
Credit impaired
Allowance for credit losses
Total

Z In lakhs

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

0.50 050
0.50 050
19.66
- : 1966
47.83 40.96
47.83 40.96
45.85 52.41
4.56 241
340.43 7.88
408.76 338.36
799.60 401.06
27.56 15.29
186.67 14.46
214.23 29.75
639.28 101.58
35.45 5.14
52.02 66.18
726.75 172.90
2885.63 1573.48
212.57 376.76
145.83 184.96
383.92 427.40
3627.95 256260
2681.56 3217.65
239.81 218,38
5583.23 5903.61
4998.84 4830.13
336.48 784.94
13839.92 14954.71
474.49 108.80
959.39 53268
138.12 074
11315.15 9998.21
58.75 44.90
(58.75) (44.90)
11315.15 9998.21
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9.1 There are no oulstanding debis due from direclors or other officers of the company
9.2 Trade receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March 2024

Particulars Olmanding for folmng periods from due date of payment
Less than 6
months 6 monihs -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
gz)ll)Jdndlspuled Trade receivables - Considered 10985.39 80.99 244.79 .98 11315.15
(i) Undispuled Trade receivables - Which have
significant increase in credit risk T E ¥ 3 58.75 58.75
(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables - Credit
impaired B
10985.39 80.99 244.79 3.98 58.75 11373.90
Less: Allowance for Credit losses I R — (58.75)
Total Trade receivable 11315.15
9 2 Trade receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March 2023
Particulars o - Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - Considered o
good 9911.08 68.75 6.47 11.91 F 9998 21
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - Which have
significant increase in credit nsk 14.80 44.80
(iiiy Undisputed Trade receivables - Credit
impaired
9911.08 68.75 6.47 11.91 4490 10043.11
Less: Allowance for Credit losses (44.90)
Total Trade receivable 9998.21
Z In lakhs
i As at As at
Cash and h lent
ashand cash equivalents March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Cash in hand 1.49 0.23
Balances with banks:
On current accounts 5950.07 1348.34
On cash credit accounts 812.46 537.13
Total 6764.02 1885.70
10.1 For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of following
Cash and cash equivalents 6764.02 1885,70
Less: Cash credit [refer note. 15(B)] - -
Total 6764.02 1885,70
Other bank balances
Margin money given againsl a bank guarantee/letter of credit
with maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months 1324.05 1002.64
Total 1324.05 100264
Current tax assets
Advance tax 2845.98 -
Less: Provision for income tax _ 2583.99 -
Total 261.99 0.00
Share capital
Authorised:
1,00,00,000 (previous year 1,00,00,000)
equity shares of 210/- each par value 1000.00 1000.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up:
41,70,584 (previous year 41,70,584 )
equity shares of 10/- each 417.06 417.06
Total 417.06 417.06
131 As at As at
: Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Equity shares No.of Shares No of Shares
At the beginning of the period 4170584 4170584
Issued during the period - -
Outstanding at the end of the period 4170584 4170584

13.2 Terms / rights attached to equity shares:

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The
company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Direclors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the

ensuing Annual General Meeting

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equily shares will be entitied to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all

preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proporiion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.




Z In lakhs

13.3 Details of shares held by holding company - B
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No, of shares Amount No_ of shares Amount
Equity shares of Z10/- each fully paid
Holding company - Directly
Pokarna Limiled - 4170584 417.06 4170584 417 06
134 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company o B -
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
Equity shares of 10/- each fully paid
Pokarna Limited 4170584 100 4170584 100
13.5 Details of shareholders holding of Promoters in the company o o
Equity Shares o . -
As at As at
S.No. Promoter Name March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 % of change during
No. of shares % holding  No. of shares % holding the year
1 Pokarna Limited 4170584 100% 4170584 100% 0%
As at As at

14 Other equity

15

Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for detailed movement in Equity balance
A. Summary of Other Equity balance
Securities Premium
Retained Earnings
Other comprehensive income
ltems of Other comprehensive income
-Remeasurement of defined benefit plans
Total

B. Nature and purpose of reserves

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

5698.82 5698 82
47668.80 38001.66

(30.15) (6.21)
53337.47 43694.27

a) Securities Premium : The amount received in excess of face vall.@ of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium Reserve.

b) Retained Earnings: Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to

shareholders
c) ltems of Other Comprehensive Income:

Remeasurement of Net Defined Benefit Plans: Differences between the interest income on plan assets and the return actually achieved, and any changes in the liabilities
over the year due to changes in actuarial assumptions or experience adjustments within the plans, are recognised in other comprehensive income and are adjusted 1o

retained earnings.

Borrowings

A. Non-current
Secured loans - From banks (refer note. 15.1)
Term loans in Indian rupees
Term loans in Foreign currency
Secured loans - From others (refer note, 15.1)
Term loans in Indian rupees
Unsecured loans
Loans & advances from related parties
Loans from direclors
Inter corporate deposits
Total

B. Current
Secured loans -From banks
Current maturities of long term borrowings:
Secured - From banks (refer note, 15.1)
Term loans in Indian rupees
Term loans in Foreign currency
Secured - From others (refer note. 15,1)
Term loans in Indian rupees
Working capital toans - repayable on demand - (refer note. 15.1)
Cash Credit Facilities in Indian rupees
Packing credit loans in Foreign currency
Bill Discounting facilities in Foreign currency
Total

Nature of security and terms of repayment for secured borrowings:

T In lakhs

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

10296.54 11842.13
10451.07 1215592
45.71 61.35

- 1061.58
7684.48 7733.86
28477.80 32854 84
2328.68 1831.14
1500.73 1479.90
15.09 13,95
1697.19 3784.26
681.97 1253.21
6223.66 8362.46

15.1 a. Term loan in Indian rupees of ¥9407.76 lakhs and Term loan in foreign currency of ¥11951.80 lakhs from Union Bank of India for Unit 2 at Mekaguda Gram
Panchayat, Dooskal Village, Ranga Reddy District is secured by a first charge on Land, Building and Plant & Machinery of Unit-2 and 2nd charge on Land,
Building and Plant & Machinery of Unit-1 at Visakhapatnam and also 2nd charge on Current assets of the Company as a additional collateral security and

personal guarantees of the Directors (other than independent directors).

b. Term loan in Indian rupees of ¥238.62 lakhs from Union Bank of India is secured by exclusive charge on assets created out of bank finance and negative lien

on the existing securilies (offered to existing limits) and personal guarantees of the Directors (olher than independent directors).
erm Loan in Indian rupees UGECL of ¥1304.79 lakhs and UGECL Ext. 1026 15 lakhs from Union Bank of India is secured by 2nd charge with existing
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15,2

d Term loans in Indian rupees of ¥708.70 lakhs are for purchase of assets from Banks and others is secured by hypolhecalion of respeclive assets and
personal guarantee of the Direclors (olher than Independent direclors)

e Working capilal facilities of 22379 16 lakhs from Union bank of india are secured by firsl charge on Land, Building and Plant & Machinery of Unit-1 at
Visakhapalnam and 2nd charge on Land, Building and Plant & Machinery of Unit-2 Hyderabad and personal guaranlees of the Directors (other lhan
independent direclors)

Cash credit facilities in Indian rupees carries interest @ 1Y MCLR+1% i e, 9 70%, Packing credit loans in foreign currency carries inlerest @ SOFR+100 bps
i.e. 6.38% and Bill discounting facilily in foreign currency carries interest @ SOFR+75bpsie, to 6 13%

f. The Company has satisfied all the covenants prescribed in terms of borrowings

Maturity profile of term loans are as set out below:

¥ In lakhs
Terms of 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 &
Repayment Beyond
a. Term loans in Foreign currency Rs 11951 .80 lakhs Repayable in 20 2609 38 3914 08 5218 77 9617 .33
(interest @ 6 .8833% (Six months SOFR plus 150bsps) quarterly
& Indian Rupees Rs 9407 76 lakhs interest @9.20%  instalments
and 9 65% (1Y MCLR+1 00%)
b.Term loan Rs 238 62 lakhs (interesl rate of 9.30% 1Y 60 monlhly 187.50 51.12 . -
MCLR+0 40%) inslaiments with 3
months moratorium
form Mar,24
c. Term loan Rs 1304 79 lakhs (interest 9 25% or 1Y ~ Repayable in 20 559.34 559 .34 186.11
MCRL+0 60% whichever is lower) monthly
instalments
d. Term loan Rs.1026.15 lakhs (interest 9.25% or 1Y  Repayable in 45 273.71 273.71 273.71 205.02
MCRL+0.80% whichiever is luwer) monthly
instalmenls
e. Term Loans Rs.708.70 lakhs (interest 8% to 9.25%) Repayable monthly 214.58 181.18 161.96 150.98
instalments till Mar
28
T In lakhs
. As at As al
i SRS GRS March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
A. Non-current
Lease liability (refer note. 40) 1014.36 115.32
Total 1014.36 115.32
B. Current
Lease liability (refer note. 40) 110.29 46.78
Total 110.2¢ 46,78
Provisions
A. Non-current
For employee benefits
Graluity (refer note. 27(1a)) 446.87 34244
Compensated absence (refer note. 27(1b}) 146.61 115.42
Total 593.48 457.86
B. Current
For employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note. 27(1a)) 14.89 1479
Compensated absence (refer note. 27(1b)) 8.40 7.60
Others
Warranties - 106077 1110.00
Total ) 1084.06 1132.39
174 Particulars Opening Provision during Pro_v_ision Closing
Balance the year utilized Balance
Provision for warranty 1110.00 - 49.23 1060.77
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“Product warranties: The company gives warranties on its producls in the nature of repairs / replacement, which fail to perform satisfactorily during warranty
period. Provision made represents the amount of the expected cost of meeting such obligation on account of rectification / replacement. The timing of outflows
is expected to be wilhin a period of 1- 2 years,

Z In lakhs
Deferred tax Liabilities (net) fisat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant & equipment 5881.12 548929

Deferred tax asset

Provisions 887.32 894 80
Unused tax credit 538.75 2621.90
Receivables 14.79 11.30
1440.86 3528.00
Total 4440.26 1961.29

* HYDERABAD
2
4‘3



fiaf!i]:ulnrs

Al lhe start of the year

Unused tax credil

Charge/ (Credit} lo statement of P&L
At the end of the year

Component of deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax asset/{liabilities) in relation to:

Property, plant and equiptient
Provisions

Receivables

Unused tax credil

Total

19  Other liabilities
A. Non-current

o ¥ In lakhs

1961.29 1032 46

2083.15 593 73

395.82 33510

4440.26 1961 29

As at Charge/(credit) to As at
March 31, 2023 profit or loss March 31, 2024
5489 29 39183 ~ 5881.12
(894 80) 748 (887.32)
(11.30) (3.49) (14.79)
(2621 90) 208315 (538.75)
1961.28 2478.97 4440.26
o Z In lakhs

As at As at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Creditors for Capital Expendilure 4291.25 179.92
Total 429125 17992
B. Current
Advance received from customers 208.23 31516
Creditors for capital expenditure 1192.27 1043.71
Slatutory liabilities 69.00 57.96
Other liabilitios 1848.26 882.11
Total 3417.76 2298.94
Z In lakhs
20 Trade payables As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) total outslanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small enterprises 293.24 219.04
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small enterprises 6763.68 5317.37
Total 7056.92 5536.41
20.1 Trade payables ageing schedule as at 31st March 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) MSME - Undisputed dues - - - 293.24
(ii} Others - Undisputed dues 5.96 - - 6763.68
Total 5.96 0.00 - 705692
Trade payables ageing schedule as at 31st March 2023 -
Ouistanding for following periods from due date of payment
Parliculars R -
~ Lessihan 1year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) MSME - Undisputed dues - - - 219.04
(ii) Others - Undispuled dues 213 - 4.43 5317.37
Total 213 - 4.43 5536,41
20.2 Disclosure in accordance with Section 22 of micro, small and medium enterprises development Act, 2006
As at As al

SL.No. Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Principal amount and interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Acl and remaining unpaid at the year

a) end &
b) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at the year end )
) Principal amount paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year
c
Interest paid, under section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers regisiered under the Act, beyond the appointed day
d) during the year .
Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for payments already made
e) ’
f) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year 3
9) Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years «

43.34

0.07

The information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have
been identified on the basis of information available with the company, regarding the status of registration of such vendor under the said Act, as per the intimation received

from them on the request made by the company.

21 Other financial liabilities

Current
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

22 Current tax liabilities (net)

Provision for income tax
Less: Advance

¥ In lakhs

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

3.32 372
3.32 3.72
E 163076
. 1513.08

117.68




23 Revenue from Operations
Sale of products
Sale of services
Total

24 Other income
Interest income on
Bank deposits
Others
Insurance claim
Exchange gain (net)
Gain on Modification of Lease
Scrap sales
Provision wrillen back
Profit on sale of property, plant & equipment
Total
25 Cost of raw material consumed
Opening stock
Add: Purchases

Less: Closing stock
Total

26 Changes in stock of finished goods, work-in-progress

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Z In lakhs
Year ended
March 31, 2023

64413.87 66493 10
558.97 273 45
64972.84 66766 55
69.33 43 27
20.75 1560

- 010

906.96 915.86

- 1.21

57.62 £67.87

- 24 26

2.90 2.06
1057.56 1070.23
3217.65 3197.62
23113.52 28675 46
26331.17 31873.08
2681.56 3217.65
23649.61 28655 42
2 In lakhs

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Finished goods 5903.61 5975.29
Work-in-progress 218.38 1239.13
6121.99 7214.42
Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods 5583.23 5903.61
Work-in-progress 239.81 218.38
5823.04 6121.99
Total 298.95 1092.43
27 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages, bonus & allowances 4903.79 3832.92
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 156.41 145,22
Retirement benefits 147.40 112.05
Staff welfare expense 270.36 244.88
Total 5477.96 4335.07
271 Emplovee benefits:
Particulars
Defined contribution plan
Employer’s contribution lo provident fund 144.88 130.72

Defined benefit plan

The present value of gratuity obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, which recognizes cach period of service as giving
rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation for compensated absence is

recognized in the same manner as gratuity.

a) Retiring gratuity:

(i) The following table sets out the amounts recognised in the financial statements in respect of retiring gratuity plan:

Particulars

Change in defined benefit obligations:

Obligation at the beginning of the year 357.23 270.90
Current service costs 71.01 56.38
Interest costs 25.18 19.28
Remeasurement {gain)/losses 38.75 15.89
Past service cost - -
Benefit paid (30.41) (5.22)
Obligation at the end of the year 461.76 357.23
Particulars

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year

Interest income

Remeasuremenl gain/(losses)

Employers' contributions 30.41 520
Benefits paid (30.41) (5.20)

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year




Amounts recognised in the balance sheet consists of: 2 In lakhs

Particulars aslal As at
_March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Fair value of plan assets -
Present value of obligalion 461.76 357 23
461.76 35723
Recognised as:
Retirement benefit liability - Current 14.89 1479
Retirement benefit liabilily - Non-current 446.87 342 44
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss consists of:
Particulars - o B
Employee benefits expenses: -
Current service cosls 71.01 56 38
Inleresl costs 25.18 1928
96.19 75.66
Other comprehensive income:
(Gain)/loss on plan assets - -
Acluarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in demographic Assumption . -
Acluarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumption 13.45 3.36
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in experience adjustments 25.30 12.53
38.75 15.89
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss 134.94 91.55
(i) The key assumptions used in ac ing for retiring gratuity is as below: -
Particulars At hsiah
B March 31, 2024 “March 31, 2023
Discount rate (per annum) 6.97% 7.20%
Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) - 8.00% 8.00%

(iii) The estimates of future salary increases considered in acluarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factor.
(iv) The table below outlines the effect on obligation in the event of a decreasefincrease of 1% in the assumplions used

As at March 31, 2024

Assumption Change in assumption Impact on scheme liabilities
Discounl rate Increase by 1%, decrease by 1% Decrease by ¥527.69 lakhs, increase by ¥407.29 lakhs
Salary rale increase by 1%, decrease by 1% Increase by ¥521.29 lakhs, decrease by ¥410.96 lakhs —

As at March 31, 2023

Assumiplion Chahge in assumplion Impact on scheme liabllities
Discount rate Increase by 1%, decrease by 1% Decrease by 406,85 lakhs, increase by T16.10 lakhs
Salary rate Increase by 1%, decrease by 1% Increase by ¥403.10 |akhs, decrease by ¥318.03 lakhs

The above sensitivities may not be represenlative of the actual change as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

b) Compensated absence:

(i) The following table sets out the amounts recognised in the financial stat its in respect of compensated absence:

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Change in defined benefit obligations: i
Obligation at the beginning of the year 123.02 96.92
Current service costs 42.63 29,57
Interest costs 8.59 6.82
Remeasurement (gain)/losses (6.76) (4.82)
Benefit paid (12.47) (5.47)
Obligation at the end of the year 155.01 123,02
Particulars
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year
Interest income
Remeasurement gain/(losses)
Employers' contributions 12.47 549
Benefits paid (12,47} (5.49)

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year - =
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Amounts recognised in the balance sheet consists of:

Z In lakhs

Particulars

Fair value of plan assels
Short term compensaled absence liability

As at
March 31, 2024

165.01

s al
March 31. 2023

123.02

Present value of obligation
155.01 123 02
Recognised as:
Reliremenl benefit liability - Current 8.40 760
Relirement benefit liabilily - Non-current 146.61 115.42
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss consists of: B
Particulars - - —
Employee benefits expenses:
Current service costs 42.63 29.57
Interest costs 8.59 682
51.22 36.39
Other comprehensive income:
(Gain)/loss on plan assets -
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in demographic Assumption - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumption 4.43 1.10
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in experience adjustments (11.19) {5.92)
{6.76) (4.82)
Expeneoe rocognised in the statement of profit and loss 44.46 _A1.57
{ii) The key assumptions used in accounting for compensated absence is as below:

. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Discount rate (per annum) o 6.97% 7.20%
Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 8.00% 8.00%_

(iii} The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, lake into account inflation, seniorily, promotion and other relevant factors,

(iv) The table below outlines the effect on obligation in the event of a decreasefincrease of 1% in the assumptions used

As at March 31, 2024

A ption Change in ption I on scheme liabilities
Discount rate Increase by 1%, decrease by 1% Decrease by ¥176.85 lakhs, Increase by T137,04 lakhs
Salary rate Increase by 1%. decrease by 1% Increase by ¥176.07 lakhs, decrease by ¥137.33 lakhs

As at March 31, 2023

Assumption Change in assumption
Discount rale Increase by 1%, decrease by 1%
Salary rate Increase by 1%, decrease by 1%

Impact on scheme liabilities

Decrease by 2139.63 lakhs, increase by 109,31 lakhs
Increase by ¥139.08 lakhs, decrease by 2109.51 lakhs

The above sensitivilies may not be representative of the actual change as it is unlikely that the change in assumplions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the

assumplions may be correlated.

Depreciation & Amortization expense
Depreciation on Property, plant & equipment (owned assets)
Depreciation on Property, plant & equipment {leased assets) (refer note. 40)
Amortization on intangible assels

Total

Finance costs
Interest on borrowings:
- Banks
- Others
Interest expense on lease liability(refer note, 40)
Interest on taxes / duties
Exchange Fluctuation considered as Interest cost
Total

¥ In lakhs

Year ended

March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

3464.10 326168
108.31 82.31
12.60 0.17
3585.01 3344.16
2452.57 2377.12
810.49 1038.71
35.07 2463
5.62 19.06
197.98 926.15
3501.73 4385.67




30 Other expenses

Year ended
March 31, 2024

ZIn lakhs

Year ended
March 31, 2023

(vi) Nalure of CSR aclivilies

(vii) Details of related party transactions

ongoing projects

Health, Sanitation,
Education & Rural
Development

Nil

Consumption of stores & spares 4873.64 477963
Packing material 1196.58 125164
Processing & job work exp 489.98 469 24
Power and fuel 1707.15 1626 38
Repairs and maintenance:
- Plant and machinery 119.95 124 69
- Building 42.12 1626
- Others 88.84 79.35
Rent (refer note. 40) 16.28 2054
Amortizalion of land lease expenses
Rates and laxes 59,52 5829
Insurance 329.99 304 97
Communication charges 36.00 36.66
Printing & stationery 30.11 2695
Travelling & conveyance expenses 227.63 183.45
Eleclricity charges 19.80 19.62
Vehicle maintenance 197.32 17137
Auditors remuneration 18.68 16.73
Professional & consultancy 351.76 304.38
Direclors sitting fee 12.00 13.00
Commussion to Non-kxecutive Uirectors 40.54 2b.0Y
Donations 52.63 240
Fees & subscriptions 19.28 19.30
Carriage outwards 2444.08 5478.59
Discounts and claims 41.58 66.67
Business promotion expenses 1580.34 1192.39
Allowances for credit loss 13.85 -
CSR activity expenses 170.01 174.65
Sundry Debit Balances Written Off - 11.56
Deferred lease rental expenses written off 6.14 3.37
Sales commission 5.00
Impairment / Loss on sale of- PPE 156.30 12.31
Bank charges 90.94 121.23
Miscellaneous expenses A 5940 6233
Total 14356.36 16673.04
30.1 - Auditors remuneration 2 In lakhs
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Statutory audit 18.00 16.50
QOut of pocket expenses 0.58 0.23
30.2 - Corporate social responsibility (CSR}
B T In lakhs
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(i) Amount required 1o be spent by the company during the year - 170.01 174.65
(i) Amount of expenditure incurred (on purpose other than construction /acquisition of assets) 60.00 60.60
(iii) Shortfall at the end of the year * 110.01 114.05
(iv) Total of previous years shortfall 113.14 167.60
(v) Reasons for shortfall Pertains to  Pertains to ongoing

projects

Health, Sanitation,
Education & Rural
Deveiopment

Nil

(viii) Where a provision is made with respect to liabilily incurred by entering into a contraciual obligation, the movement in the

provision during the year shall be shown separately Nil Nil
*The unspent amount will be transferred to unspent CSR account within 30 days from the end of the financial year, in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the CSR Amendment Rules.
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Income taxes
A) Income tax expense/{benefit) recognised in the statement of profit and foss

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Z In lakhs

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Current lax 4672.71 2224 49
Deferred tax 403.87 337 89
Deferred lax on comprehensive income (8.05) (2.78)
Total 5068.53 2559 60
B) Reconciliation of Income tax expense
Profit / (loss) before tax 156160.78 9350.98
Other comprehensive income (31.99) (11.07)
Effeclive lax rate 34.944% 29.120%
Compuled effeclive lax expense 5286.60 2719.78
Tax Effect of:
Expenses disallowed 1509.01 1589.00
Allowable items from IT acl (2018.32) (2058.56)
Setoff against carryover losses - -
Deductions under IT act (104.58) (25.73)
Current tax provision (A} 4672.71 2224 49
Incremental deferred tax liability on account of PPE and intangible assets 391.83 806.08
Incremental deferred tax assel on account of financial assets and other items 3.99 (470.97)
Deferred tax provision (B) 395.82 33511
Tax Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss (A+B) 5068.53 2559.60
Effective Tax Rate 33.50% 27.40%
Earnings per share (EPS})
Earnings per share (EPS} -
(i) Face value of equity share (in ¥) 10.00 10.00
(ii) Weighted average number of equity shares oulstanding 4170584 4170584
(iiiy Profit for the year 10084.20 6788.60
(iv) Weighted average earnings per share (basic and diluted) (in %) 241.79 162.77

Related party disclosures :
As per IND AS 24, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below:

List of related parties where control exists and related parties wilh whom transactions have taken piace and relalionships:

a) Enterprise which has control:
Pokarna Limited - parent company
b) Enterprises where control exists:
Pokarna Foundalion -subsidiary
c) Names of the associates:
Pokarna Fabrics Pvt Limited, Pokarna Fashions Pvt Limited, Pokarna Marketing Pvt Limited, Southend, Southend Exlension, Pokarna Texliles
d) Names of Key management personnel
Gautam Chand Jain, Rahul Jain, Apurva Jain, Paras Kumar Jain
e) Names of relatives

Vidya Jain, Rekha Jain, Anju Jain, Ritu Jain, Pratik Jain, Neha Jain, Gautam Chand Jain (HUF), Prakash Chand Jain (HUF), Ashok Chand Jain (HUF)

f) Name of executive & non-executive director

Prakash Chand Jain, Mahender Chand Chordia, Meka Yugandhar, Vinayak Rao Juvvadi, Jayshree Rajesh Sanghani,

A. Compensation of Key management personnel of the Company

The amount mentioned below represents remuneration paid and debited to the company. The compensalion includes salary, employer's contribution 10 PF, LTA, bonus,
medical and terminalion benefits. Managing Director, Whole time Directors and CEQ are regarded as Key management personnel in terms of Companies act, 2013

Particulars

Short-term employee benefits

Termination benefits*

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

1110.32 497.61

Post-employment pension, provident fund and medical benefits 0.46 023
1110.78 497 84

Total compensation paid to Key management personnel

* Expenses towards graluity and leave encashment provisions are delermined actuarially on an overall Company basis and, accordingly, have nol been considered in the

above information,




B. Transactions with KMP and other related parties - 2023-24 (2022-23)

Nature of the

Key management Non-executive

Associates/

T In lakhs

transaction Parent Co Subsidiary personnel directors other rglated Relatives Total
parties
Purchases o
Goods and services, net 50.44 - 50.44
(75.72) (75.72)
Purchase of Assels 163.50 153.50
(17.22) (17.22)
Sales
Goods and services, net 4.46 4.46
Sale of Assels 10.50 10.50
Expenses
Remuneration - 1110.32 - 24.00 1134.32
- (497 61) - - (8.00) {505.61)
Rent & taxes 7.08 10.89 212 18.00 62.57 100.66
(7.08) . > . (61.42) (68.50)
Interest - 4117 - 742.40 783.57
(194 82) - (787.86) (982.68)
Commission & Sitting £2.60
fees = - ’ - 52.60
- = (37.90) (37 90)
Dividend paid 417.06 417.06
(250.24) (250 24)
Fee paid 295.03 295.03
Rent Deposils given 9.23 7.18 72.00 14.36 102.77
Carrying amount
Payables 769.63 40.60 7700.68 0.52 8511.43
(1061.58) (24.85) (7733.86) (8820.29)
RentidepasitsEreceivable 9.23 7.18 72.00 75.72 164.13
- - - (81.16) (81.16)
Investments 0.50 0.50
(0.50) (0.50)
Share Capital 6115.88 - - 6115.88
o {6115.88) - - - - - (6115.88)
Disclosure in respect of material transactions with KMP and other related parties during the year: Z In lakhs
Year ended Year ended

S.No

Particulars Relationship
1 Purchases

Goods and services, net

Pokarna Ltd Parent Co

Purchase of Assets

Pokarna Ltd Parent Co

2 Sales
Goods and services, net

Pokarna Fashions Private Limited

Assets
Pokarna Ltd
3 Expenses
Remuneration
Gautam Chand Jain
Neha Jain
Paras Kumar Jain
Rent & taxes
Rekha Jain
Ashok Chand Jain (HUF)
Anju Jain
Gautam Chand Jain (HUF)
Prakash Chand Jain (HUF)
Pokarna Ltd
Gautam Chand Jain
Prakash Chand Jain
Pratik Jain
Vidya Jain
Kishore Industries
Interest
Pokarna Fabrics Pvt Limited

Pokarna Marketing Pvt Limited

Gautam Chand Jain

Rahul Jain

Commission & Sitting fee
Prakash Chand Jain
Mahender Chand Chordia
Meka Yugandhar

Vinayak Rao Juvvadi

Ass.Company

Parent Co

Key management personnel
Relative
Key management personnel

Relative

Relative

Relative

Relative

Relative

Parent Co

Key management personnel
Non-executive director
Relative

Relative

Relaled party

Associate
Associate
Key management personnel
Key management personnel

Non-executive director
Non-executive direclor
Non-executive director
Non-executive director

March 31, 2024

50.44

153.50

4.46

10.50

811.78
24.00
298.54

17.25
11.68

14.70
15.27
7.08
10,89
212
212
1.55
18.00

706.43
35.97

41.17

10.12

9.62
11.12
11.12

March 31, 2023

75.72

17,22

677.02
110.84

53.43
141.39

7.48
6.98
7.48
7.98



Z In lakhs

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023
Jayshree Rajesh Sanghani Non-executive director 10.62 798
Dividend Paid
Pokarna Limited Parent Co 417.06 250 24
Fee Paid for corporate guarantee taken
Pokarna Limited Parenl Co 295.03
4 Rent Deposits given
Gaulam Chand Jain Key management personnel 9.23
Kishore Industries Relaled party 72.00
Prakash Chand Jain Non-execulive director 7.18
Pratik Jain Relative 7.18
Vidya Jain Relative 7.18
Carrying amount
5 Payables
Pokarna Fabrics Pvl Limited Associate 7684.48 7048 69
Gaulam Chand Jain Key management personnel 619.63 .
Kishore Industries Related parly 16.20
Vidya Jain Relative 0.52
Paras Kumar Jain Key management personne! 150.00 -
Rahul Jain Key management personnel 1061.58
Prakash Chand Jain Non-executive director 8.12 497
Mahender Chand Chordia Non-executive director 8.12 497
Mehka Yuyandha Non-execulive direclor 812 497
Vinayak Rao Juvvadi Non-executive director 8.12 497
Jayshree Rajesh Sanghani Non-cxceulive dircetor 8.12 497
Pokarna Marketing Pvt Limited Associate = 685.17
6 Rent deposits receivable
Prakash Chand Jain Non-execulive director 7.18 =
Pratik Jain Relative 7.18 -
Vidya Jain Relative 7.18 -
Gaulam Chand Jain Key management personnel 9.23 -
Kishore Industries Relative 72.00 -
Rekha Jain Relative 16.48 16.48
Ashck Chand Jain (HUF) Relative 11.34 11.34
Anju Jain Relative ~ - 19.80
Gautam Chand Jain (HUF) Relalive 16.44 16.44
Prakash Chand Jain (HUF) Relative 17.10 17.10
7 Investments
Pokarna Foundation Subsidiary 0.50 0.50
8 Share Capital
Pokarna Limited Parent Co B 6115.88 6115.88
34 Contingent liabilities and commitments
34.1 Contingent Liabilities: N T In lakhs
. As at As at
i March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
a) Letter of credits outstanding - 165.62 306.85
b) Bank guarantee 35.00 35.00
c) Claims against the company / disputed liabilities not acknowledged as debts:
(i) Claim against warranty 26.93 26.93
(i) As per the amendment in The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 notified on 1 January 2016, which was 32,83 32.83
effective retrospectively from 1st April, 2014, the company on the legal advice decided not to
implement in view of the interim order dated 26th April, 2016 of Hon'ble Andhra Pradesh High Court
allowing stay on the amendment with retrospective effect till the time its constitutional validity is
established.
34.2 Capital commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account not provided for 3862.09 172.23

34.3 Other commitments:
The undertaking of the company situated at Atchutapuram, Visakhapatnam being a SEZ has executed a legal undertaking for obligations regarding proper
utilization and accountable of goods, including capital goods, stores & spares, raw materials, components and consumables including fuels, imported or
N procured duty free and regarding achievement of positive net foreign exchange earning. As on 31st March,2024, the Company has a positive Net Foreign
Exchange Earning, as defined in the SEZ Act,2005

The undertaking of the company situated at Mekaguda Gram panchayal and Dooskal village, Ranga Reddy Dist. is registered as a 100% export oriented unit
("EOU"), and is exempted from customs and central excise duties, GST and levies on imported & indigenous capital goods and stores & spares. The company
has executed a bond cum legal undertaking to pay customs duty, central excise delests, levies and liquidated damages payable, if any, in respect of imported

b) and indigenous capital goods and stores & spares, consumed duty free, in the event that certain terms and conditions are not fulfilled. As on 31st March,2024,
the Company has a posilive Net Foreign Exchange Earning, as defined in the foreign trade policy 2023 wherever applicable.

The date of impiementation of ihe Code of Wages 2019 and Code on Social Security, 2020 is yet to be notified by the Government, The Company is in the
c) process of assessing the impact of these Codes and will give effect in the financial results when the Rules/Schemes thereunder are notified.

344 Lease commitments of short term lease and low value lease
Lease commilments are the fulure cash out flows from the lease contracts which are not recorded in the measurement of lease liabilities. These include
potential future payments related to leases of low value assets and leases with term less than twelve months

* | HYDERABAD
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Particulars

Nol later than One year

¥ In lakhs

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
16 28 20 54

Later than one year and not laler lhan five years

Capital management

i) The Board's policy is lo maintain a strong capilal base so as lo maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to suslain future developmentl of lhe business The
Board of Directors monilors Lhe relurn on capital, which the Company defines as result from operating activities divided by tolal shareholders' equity

ii} The Board seeks lo maintain a balance belween the higher returns thal might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capilal position

iii) The Company's adjusted nel debl lo equity ralio is as follows:

Z In lakhs

: As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Gross debt 34701.46 41217.30
Less: Cash and bank balances 8133.92 294075
Adjusted net debt 26567.54 38276.55
Total equily 53754.53 4411133
0.49 087

Adjusted net debt to equity ratio

Segment reporting
Ihe company I1s engaged in manutacturing, processing and selling high quality engineered quartz surtaces only and accordingly this is the only business segment. Ihe
company's chief operating decision maker (CODM) is considered lo be the company's Managing Director. The company's CODM reviews financial information presented, for
making operating decisions and assessing financial performance of the company Therefore, the company has determined that it operates in a single operating and
reportable segment

Revenue attributable to location of customers is as follows: T In lakhs

: Year Ended Year Ended
Geographical market March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
USA 56049.43 61528.52
India 2053.04 2177 45
Rest of the World 6870.37 3060.58
Total 64972.84 66766.55

Financial instruments

(i) The entire activily pertaining to sales outside India is carried out from India

(i) The Company's exposure to customers is diversified and there are only three customers who contributes more than 10% each of the total revenue for the year ended
March 31, 2024 and for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Accounting classifications and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounits and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy:

31st March 2024 o T In lakhs
Carrying Amount Fair Value
: Other financial Other financial .
Gatticulars assets -amortised  liabilities - |02 carving Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
: amount
cost amortised cost
Financial assets measured at fair value
Security Deposit 408.76 - 408.76 - 408.76 -
Deferred payment charges 527.10 - 527.10 - 527.10 -
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Other loans 47.83 - 47.83 - = -
Accrued interest 3212 - 3212 -
Trade receivables 11315.15 - 11315.15 -
Cash and bank balances 8133.92 - 8133.92 - -
Total 20464.88 - 20464.88 - 935.86 i
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
Lease liability 1124.65 - 1124.65 - 1124.65
Financial liabilities not measured at fair
value
Secured bank loans 26956.18 - 26956.18 - - -
Secured other loans 60.80 - 60.80 - - -
Loans from related parlies 7684.48 - 7684.48 - - -
Trade payables 7056.92 - 7056.92 - - -
Accrued interest 3.32 - 3.32 - - -
Total 42886.35 < 42886.35 - 1124.65 -

* (HYDERABAD | *
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31sl March 2023

Carrying Amount Fair Value
Other financial Other financial
. assets -amortised liabilities -
Partcuiars cost amortised cost  Tolal carrying Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
amount
Financial assets measured al fair value )
Security Deposil 338 36 338 36 - 338.36
Deferred payment charges 2234 2234 2234
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Other toans 60 62 - 60.62 = -
Accrued inlerest 17.70 17.70 - - -
Trade receivables 9998 21 - 9998 21
Cash and bank batances 294075 - 2940.75 £
Total 13377.98 13377.98 360.70
Financial liabilities measured at fair value T B
Lease liabilily 162.10 162 10 - 162.10
Financial liabilities nol measured at fair value
Secured bank loans 32346.56 32346.56 - -
Secured other loans 75.30 75.30
Loans from related parlies 8795 44 8795,44 -
Trade payables 5536.41 - 5536.41 -
Accrued interest 3.72 372 ] =
Total  46919.53 - 4691953 162.10

The fair value of financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis. The carrying amount of current financial assels and liabilities are considered to be
the same as their fair values, due to their short term nature. The fair value of the long-term borrowings with floating-rate of interest is not impacted due to interest rate
changes, and will be evaluated for their carrying amounts based on any change in the under-lying credit risk of the Company borrowing (since the date of inception of the
loans). For financial assets and liabililies that are measured at fair value, the carrying amount is equal 1o the fair values

Financial risk management objectives and policies

I. Overview

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

= Credit risk

« Liquidity risk

* Market risk

« Operational risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company's objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing
risk, and the Company’s management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements

Il. Risk management framework:
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the eslablishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The Board is responsible for
developing and monitoring the Company'’s risk management policies

* Credit risk

i} Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally
from the company'’s receivables from customer.

ii) Trade and other receivables: The company considers the probability of default upon initial recognilion of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and measurement of loss allowance using Life time expected credit loss for trade receivables:

¥ In lakhs
i As at As at
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Not due - 6804.68 8856.97
Up to 1 year 4261.70 1122.86
1 to 2 years 244.78 6.47
2 to 3 years 15.39 11.91
More than 3 years 47.35 449
Total 11373.90 10043 11
Financial Assets are considered to be of good quality and there is no significant increase in credit risk, S
Movements in allowance for credit losses of receivables is as below:
Balance at the beginning of the year 44.90 69.16
Charge in statement of profil and loss 13.85 -
Release to statement of profit and loss = (24.26)
Utilised during the year = -
Balance at the end of the year 58.75 44 90

iii) Cash and cash equivalents: The company held cash and cash equivalents of ¥6764.02 lakhs (previous year 1885,70 lakhs). The cash and cash equivgfeﬁts_a_re_h-eld
with public sector banks, There is no impairment on cash and cash equivalents as on the reporting date and the comparative period.

» Liquidity risk

i) Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will aiways have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation

i) The company aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents and invesiments at an amount in excess of expected cash outflows on financial liabilities (other
than trade payables) over the next six months. The company also monitors the level of expected cash inflows on trade receivables and loans together with expected cash
outflows on trade payables and other financial liabilities, This excludes potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot be reasonably predicted, such as natural
disasters.
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iii) Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities al he reporting date

31st March 2024 % In lakhs
Particulars Carrying 1 year or less 1-3 years LEIE (g
- amount 3 years
Borrowings- secured 27016.98 3844.51 10819.98 12352.49
Borrowings- un-secured 7684 .48 X 7684.48
Trade payables 7056.92 7056.92 . -
Lease liabilities 1124.65 110.29 191.45 822.90
Other financial liabililies - 3.32 3.32 - -
31st March 2023 —
fRarlictlacs Carrying 1 year or less 1-3 years ioretihar
amount 3 years
Borrowings- secured 3242186 8362 46 8246 90 16812 50
Borrowings- un-secured 8795 44 - = 8795.44
Trade payables 5536 41 5536 41 ] -
Lease liabilities 162.10 46.79 3579 79.52
Olher financial liabilities 372 372 =

* Market risk

i) Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates prices, will affect the Company's income or the value of its financial
instruments. Market risk is allributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables, long term debl and commodity
prices. The Company is exposed to market risk primarily relaled to foreign exchange rate risk and interest rate risk

Z In lakhs

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Currency usD EURO UsD EURO
Borrowings 14468.00 = 1747272 B
Trade receivables 10470.22 589.83 9485.43 127 65
Trade and other payables ( including payable for capital goods) 469.43 7586.71 96,39 2280.49
Cash & Bank balances ( Including deposits) 5206.17 _478.70 868.65 7774
Total 30613.82 8655.24 27923.19 2485 88

i) Currency Risk: The company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transaction. The Company also imports and the risk is managed by
regular follow up . The Company has a policy which is implemented when the foreign currency risk become significant.

A 10% appreciation/depreciation of the foreign currencies with respect to functional currency of the Company would resul in an increase/decrease in the Company’s net
profit before tax by approximately ¥577.92 lakhs (previous year 2929 01 lakhs)

iii} Interest rate Risk : Interest rate risk can be either fair value inlerest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair
values of fixed interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates, in cases where the borrowings are measured at fair value through the Statement of
profit and loss. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing investments will fluctuate because of fluctuations in the interest
rates.

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rate at the reporting date would have increased or decreased profit or loss by 291.68 lakhs ( previous year
¥344.33 lakhs). This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.

¢« Operational risk

i) Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variely of causes associated with the Company's processes, personnel, lechnology and
infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted
standards of corporate behaviour. Operational risks arise from all of the Company's operations.

i) The Company’s objeclive is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage to the Company’s reputation with overall cost
effecliveness and to avoid control procedures that restrict initiative and creativity.

ii)The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of conlrols to address operational risk is assigned lo senior management within each business unit
This responsibility is supported by the development of overall Company standards for the management of operational risk in the following areas:

« Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorization of transaclions

= Requirements for the reconcilialion and monitoring of transactions

« Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements

- Documentation of controls and procedures

= Requirements for the periodic assessment of operalional risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and procedures 1o address the risks identified

* Requirements for the reporling of operational losses and proposed remedial action

= Development of contingency plans

* Training and professional development

« Ethical and business standards

« Risk mitigation, including insurance when this is effective.

iv) Compliance with Company's standards is supported by a programme of periodic reviews undertaken by Internal Audit. The results of Internal Audit reviews are discussed
with the management of the business unit to which they relate, with summaries submitted to the Audit Committee and Board of the Company.

Pokarna Engineered Stone Limited ("PESL") was selecled by the U.S. Department of Commerce ("USDOC") as a “mandatory respondent” second administrative review of
the Antidumping duty (“ADD") Order on the imports of quartz surface products from India and as a result, PESL's ADD assessment rate for the second review period
continues to be 0% and also the ADD cash deposit continues 1o be 0% with effect from November 20, 2023

The third administrative ADD review is ongoing whose preliminary results are expected in June 2024. With regard to CVD review, none of the parties have requested for
second and third review, hence the CVD duty of 2.34% as determined in investigation period is final CVD assessment rate for entries of the second as well as third review
period,

There is no impact on the financials of the company,
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Leases disclosures:
As a Lessee
Movement in lease liability during the year:

Particulars

Opening balance

Additions on account of adoplion of Ind As 116
Adjuslments on modification of leases

Inlerest expenses on lease liabilily

Principal payments of lease liability

Closing balance
Current

Non Current

Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows
Payments for leases In financing activily

Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss

Depreciation expense on leased assets
Interest expense on lease liabilily
Rent expense {Short term leases and leases of low value assets)

Total amount recognised in Profit or loss

¥ In lakhs
As at 31st March As at 31st March
- 2024 2023
162.10 143.35
1025.76
6151
35.07 24 63
(98.29) (67.39)
1124.64 162.10
110.29 46.78
1014.36 11532
98.29 67.39
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
N 108.31 82.31
35.07 2463
16.28 20,54
159,66 127.48

Ratlos
Following are analytical ratios for the year ended

Particulars Numerator Denominator March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 Variance Reasons

Current Ratio (in times)  Current assets Current liabilities 2.24 1.85 21% —

Debt - Equity Ratio (in  Total Debts Shareholder's 0.60 0.82 -27% Due to reduction in debt and increase in

times) Equity shareholders' equity

Debt - Service coverage Earnings available  Debt service 1.86 1.57 18% -

Ratio (in times) for debt service

Return on Equity(ROE)  Net profits after taxes Average 19% 15% 27% Due to increase in profit

(in %) Shareholder's

lnventory turnover ratio  Cost of goods sold ~ Average Inventory 246 272 -10%  ---

Trade receivables Net credit sales Average Trade 6.10 567 8% -

turnover ratio Receivables

Trade payables turnover Net credit purchase Average Trade 4.47 4.41 1% -

ratio Payables

Net capital turnover ralio Revenue Working capital 3.14 476 -34% Due to decrease in utilisation of working
capital

Net profit ratio (in %) Net Profit Revenue 16% 10% 60% Due to increase in profit

Return on capital Earnings before Capital Employed 25% 21% 19% —-

employed (ROCE) (in %) interest and taxes

Return on Investment Income generated Time weighted
(ROI) (in %) from investments average
invesiments

42 Additional Regulatory Information
a) The Company has used ihe borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it has taken al the balance sheet date and

quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed with banks are in agreement with the books of accounts
b) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and its intangible assets.

¢) The Company is not holding any Benami Property and there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company.

d) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions.

e) The Company does not have any relationship with Struck off Companies
f) There are no transactions not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the

Income Tax act

g) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

h) Other than in the normal and ordinary course of business there are no funds that have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entilies, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indireclly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whalsoever
("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company; or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

There have been no funds that have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in wriling or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indireclly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whalsoever
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the Funding Party or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimale Beneficiaries.

43 The Company evaluates events and transactions that occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to the approval of financial statements to determine the necessily
for recognition and/or reporting of any of these events and transaclions in the financial statements. As of 16th May 2024, there are no subsequent events lo be recognised or

reported {hat ady disclosed




44 Dividend

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Dividend on Equity shares paid during the year
Final dividend for the FY 2022-23 [ Rs. Nil {Previous year Rs. Nil) per equity share of Rs 10 each}

Interim dividend for the FY 2023-24 [Rs 10/- (Previous year Rs 6/-) per equily share of Rs 10 each] 417.06 250.24

Proposed Dividend:
The Board of direclors at its meeling held on 16th May 2024 have not recommended any furlher dividend and the interim dividend paid is considered as the final dividend for
lhe financial year 2023-24

45 Previous year figures are regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever considered necessary in order to conform to the current year's presentalion

46 The financial slatements for the year ended 31st March 2024 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors at their meetings held on
16th May 2024

In terms of our report altached

For S.Daga & Co.

Chartered Accountants
(F.No.000669S)

Rahul Jain
Direclor
(D.No: 00576447)

Shantilal Daga
Partner
Membership No, 11617
Place : Hyderabad
Date : 16th May, 2024

LoLA . Q4o 9 RRCRPeALTY



	15081df6b30eb0ceeefa720d3533da273ac8f6c203440dc59a48db4aff999a83.pdf
	15081df6b30eb0ceeefa720d3533da273ac8f6c203440dc59a48db4aff999a83.pdf
	15081df6b30eb0ceeefa720d3533da273ac8f6c203440dc59a48db4aff999a83.pdf

